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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS  
For The Year Ended 31 December 2007

	 GROUP	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006  
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
 OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

(Loss)/profit before taxation from:  
  - Continuing operations 	 (967,454) 	 6,957,509 	 (2,828,389) 	 (4,952,475)  
  - Discontinued operations 	 3,649,504 	 311,763 	 -	 -

Adjustments for:  
  Depreciation of property, 
    plant and equipment 
  - Continuing operations 	 5,755,130 	 5,998,935 	 42,846 	 40,879 
  - Discontinued operations 	 -	 3,026,171 	 -	 -

Depreciation of investment properties 
  - Discontinued operations 	 10,051 	 40,206 	 -	 -

Amortisation of prepaid land 
  lease payments 
  - Continuing operations 	 189,022 	 284,347 	 -	 - 
  - Discontinued operations 	 -	 67,256 	 -	 -

Property, plant and equipment written off  
  - Continuing operations 	 41,663 	 40,144 	 995	 -  
  - Discontinued operations 	 -	 284,681 	 -	 -

Dividend income 	 -	 -	 (4,208,160) 	 (4,303,500) 

Interest income 	 (833,420) 	 (849,445) 	 (16,596) 	 (8,174) 

Interest expense  
  - Continuing operations 	 7,166,927 	 7,793,911 	 5,543,164 	 6,241,769 
  - Discontinued operations 	 251,125 	 451,612 	 -	 -

Impairment of goodwill 	 -	 45,120 	 -	 -

Gain on disposal of property,  
  plant and equipment 
  - Continuing operations 	 (71,091) 	 (163,949) 	 -	 - 
  - Discontinued operations 	 (1,872,285) 	 (17,935) 	 -	 -

(Write back)/impairment of  
  investments and properties 	 (682,715) 	 (140,622) 	 -	 134,378
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	 GROUP	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

CASH FLOWS FROM   	
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (Contd.)

Allowance for doubtful debts  
  - Continuing operations 	 899,548 	 904,671 	 413,019 	 1,928,033  
  - Discontinued operations 	 50,106 	 28,237 	 -	 -

Write back of provision for liquidated  
  ascertained damages 	 (2,525,260) 	 -	 -	 -

Bad debts written off 	 299,393 	 39,196 	 7,892    	 -

Bad debts recovered 	 -	 (12,000) 	 -   	 -

Write down of inventories 	 606,984 	 670,784 	 -   	 -

Share options granted under ESOS 	 127,050 	 -	 127,050 	 -

Loss retained in associates 	 11,297 	 90,633 	 -	 -

Operating profit/(loss) before 
  working capital changes 	 12,105,575 	 25,851,225 	 (918,179) 	 (919,090) 

Working capital changes: 				  

Property development expenditure 	 6,230,130 	 23,068,755 	 -	 -

Inventories 	 6,223,130 	 1,419,396 	 -	 -

Receivables 	 27,400,446 	 (10,029,534) 	 (23,331,740) 	 (13,563) 

Payables 	 (24,916,390) 	 (10,400,355) 	 (2,495,960) 	 530,580 

Associates 	 (31) 	 (24) 	 -	 -

Subsidiaries 	 -	 -	 23,211,308 	 (6,506,380) 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 	 27,042,860 	 29,909,463 	 (3,534,571) 	 (6,908,453) 

Dividend received 	 -	 -	 3,327,959 	 3,098,520 

Interest paid 	 (6,939,058) 	 (7,766,531) 	 (2,715) 	 (3,174) 

Tax refund 	 1,483,549 	 1,138,787 	 2,815,309 	 3,570,000 

Net cash flows generated 
  from/(used in) operating activities 	 21,587,351 	 23,281,719 	 2,605,982 	 (243,107)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Contd. ) 
For The Year Ended 31 December 2007
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Contd. ) 
For The Year Ended 31 December 2007

	 GROUP	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

CASH FLOWS FROM   	
Investing ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property,  
  plant and equipment 	 12,125,853 	 251,173 	 -	 -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 	 (2,715,799) 	 (2,044,117) 	 (18,841) 	 (650) 

Proceeds from disposal of other investments 	 -	 2,688,495	  -	 2,688,495 

Additonal investment in a 
  subsidiary, net of cash acquired 	 (3) 	 2 	 -	 -

Interest received 	 833,420 	 849,445 	 16,596 	 8,174 

Net cash flows generated from/ 				     
  (used in) investing activities 	 10,243,471 	 1,744,998 	 (2,245) 	 2,696,019 

CASH FLOWS FROM	
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES 				  

Proceeds from issue of 
  shares to minority interests 	 157,500 	 745,000 	 -	 -

Dividend paid to shareholders 
  of the Company 	 (2,497,377) 	 (2,463,167) 	 (2,497,377) 	 (2,463,167) 

Dividend paid to minority 
  shareholders in a subsidiary 	 (175,200) 	 (155,520) 	 -	 -

Drawdown of term loans 	 7,119,850 	 1,880,150 	 -	 -

Repayment of term loans 	 (17,543,552) 	 (20,119,169) 	 -	 -

Repayment of hire purchase creditors 	 (584,935) 	 (275,050) 	 (25,375) 	 (32,250) 

Net cash flows used in financing activities 	 (13,523,714) 	 (20,387,756) 	 (2,522,752) 	 (2,495,417) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH 	
  AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 	 18,307,108 	 4,638,961 	 80,985 	 (42,505)

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT	
  BEGINNING OF YEAR 	 8,355,750 	 3,716,789 	 35,218 	 77,723

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 	
  AT END OF YEAR 	 26,662,858 	 8,355,750 	 116,203 	 35,218 	
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following: 		

	 GROUP	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 
	

Deposits with licensed banks 	 8,780,673 	 9,836,120 	 -	 -

Cash and bank balances 	 18,721,460 	 5,689,236 	 116,203 	 35,218 

Bank overdrafts 	 (839,275) 	 (7,169,606) 	 -	 -

	 26,662,858 	 8,355,750 	 116,203 	 35,218 	

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Contd. ) 
For The Year Ended 31 December 2007
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1. 	 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

	 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on 
the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

	 The registered office and the principal place of business of the Company is located at Wisma BBN, PT 7454, 
Jalan BBN 1/1A, Putra Point Phase 1, Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus. 

	 The principal activities of the Company are in the provision of management services and investment holding. 
The principal activities of the subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the financial 
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the 
financial year except for the discontinuance of the hotel division as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial 
statements. 

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors dated 24 April 2008. 

2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

	 2.1 	 Basis of Preparation 

	 	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company, presented in Ringgit Malaysia, comply 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Financial Reporting Standards in 
Malaysia. 

	 	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared on the respective 
measurement basis as stated in the summary of significant accounting policies. 

	 2.2 	 Adoption of new and revised Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) 

	 	 At the beginning of the current financial year, the Company had adopted the following new and 
revised FRSs which are mandatory for its financial year beginning on 1 January 2007: 

	 	 FRS 6: 	 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

	 	 Amendments to	
FRS 119: 	 Employee Benefits - Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures 

	 	 FRS 6 and amendments to FRS 119 are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. 

	 	 The adoption of all the above standards does not result in significant changes to the accounting 
policies and does not result in significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company. 

	 	 In the previous year, the Group and the Company has taken the option of early adoption of the 
following new FRSs, which were effective for periods beginning on or after 1 October 2006, in the 
last financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006: 

	 	 FRS 117 	 Leases	
FRS 124 	 Related Party Disclosures	

	 	 (i) 	 New standards and interpretations that are not yet effective 

	 	 	 The new FRS 107, 112, 118, 134 and 137 that have been issued but not yet effective will not 
have significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company upon 
adoption. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
31 December 2007

54
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd. )
31 December 2007

2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

	 2.2 	 Adoption of new and revised Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) (Contd.)

	 	 (i) 	 New standards and interpretations that are not yet effective (Contd.)

			   The new FRS 111 and 120, amendments to FRS 121, and Issues Committee Interpretations  
(“IC Interpretations”) 1, 2, 5, 6, 7 and 8 that have been issued but not yet effective are not 
applicable to the Group and the Company. 

			   FRS 139, Financial Instruments : Recognition and Measurement application has been deferred 
to a date to be announced by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board. The Group and the 
Company are exempted from disclosing the possible impact, if any, to the financial statements 
upon the initial application of FRS 139. 

	 2.3 	 Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates 

		  Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the 
financial statements. They affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going 
basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

	 	 (a)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

			   The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

(i)	 Impairment of goodwill 

	 The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This 
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) 
to which goodwill is allocated. Estimating a recoverable amount requires management 
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose 
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The 
carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2007 was RM842,506 (2006: RM842,506). 
Further details are disclosed in Note 18. 

(ii) 	 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

	 The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis over 
the assets’ useful life. Management estimates of the useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment and the residual value are as disclosed in Note 2.4(d). Any changes in the useful 
lives and residual value could impact the future depreciation charges. A 1% difference in 
the current year depreciation charge would result in 4% variance in the profit for the year 
of the Group. 

(iii) 	 Property development 

	 The Group recognises property development revenue and expenses in the income statement 
by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the 
proportion that property development costs incurred for work performed to date bear to 
the estimated total property development costs. 

	 Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent 
of the property development costs incurred, the estimated total property development 
revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the development projects. In making the 
judgement, the Group evaluates based on past experience and by relying on the work of 
specialists.
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.3 	 Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (Contd.)

	 	 (a) 	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd.) 

(iii) 	 Property development (Contd.)

	 A 10% difference in the estimated total property development revenue or costs would 
result in approximately 6% variance in the Group’s revenue and 9% variance in the Group’s 
cost of sales.

(iv)	 Income taxes 

	 Judgement is involved in determining the provision for income taxes. There are certain 
transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain 
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax 
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax 
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such 
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which 
such determination is made. As at 31 December 2007, the Group have tax payables, tax 
recoverable and deferred tax liabilities of approximately RM292,000 (2006: RM294,000), 
RM5,564,000 (2006: RM7,297,000) and RM38,036,000 (2006: RM38,396,000), 
respectively. 

(v) 	 Deferred tax assets 

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital 
allowances to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the losses and capital allowances can be utilised. Significant management judgement 
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based 
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 
strategies. The total carrying value of recognised tax losses and capital allowances of the 
Group was approximately RM1,613,000 (2006: RM3,036,000) and of the unrecognised 
tax losses and capital allowances of the Group and the Company were approximately 
RM58,373,000 (2006: RM66,198,000) and RM639,000 (2006: RM502,000) respectively. 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

	 	 (a) 	 Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation 

(i) 	 Subsidiaries 

	 Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the ability to control the financial and 
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence and effect 
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when 
assessing whether the Group has such power over another entity. 

(ii) 	 Basis of Consolidation 

	 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at 
cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net 
disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss. 

	 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company 
and its subsidiaries as at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries 
are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company.
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

	 	 (a) 	 Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation (Contd.) 

(ii) 	 Basis of Consolidation  (Contd.) 

	 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the 
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control 
ceases. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, intragroup balances, transactions 
and unrealised gains or losses are eliminated in full. Uniform accounting policies are 
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar 
circumstances. 

	 Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method. The purchase 
method of accounting involves allocating the cost of the acquisition to the fair value of the 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. 
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date 
of exchange, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 
issued, plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisition.  

	 Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of 
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities represents goodwill. Any excess of 
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

	 Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not 
held by the Group. It is measured at the minorities’ share of the fair value of the subsidiaries’ 
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date and the minorities’ share of changes 
in the subsidiaries’ equity since then.

		  (b) 	 Associates 

			   Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary 
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial 
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not in control or joint control over those 
policies. 

			   Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the 
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment in associate is carried 
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s 
share of net assets of the associate. The Group’s share of the net profit or loss of the associate 
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. Where there has been a change recognised 
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of such changes. In applying 
the equity method, unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and the 
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. After application 
of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional 
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate. The associate is 
equity accounted for from the date the Group obtains significant influence until the date the 
Group ceases to have significant influence over the associate. 

			   When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 
including any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in 
the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the associate. 
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

	 	 (b) 	 Associates (Contd.)

			   The most recent available audited financial statements of the associates are used by the Group 
in applying the equity method. Where the dates of the audited financial statements used 
are not coterminous with those of the Group, the share of results is arrived at from the last 
audited financial statements available and management financial statements to the end of the 
accounting period. Uniform accounting policies are adopted for like transactions and events in 
similar circumstances. 

			   In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are stated at cost less 
impairment losses.  

			   On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying 
amounts is included in profit or loss.

	 	 (c) 	 Goodwill 

			   Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the 
cost of business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following the initial recognition, goodwill is measured 
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised but instead, it is 
reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity 
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. 

	 	 (d) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment, and Depreciation 

			   All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are 
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during 
the financial period in which they are incurred.  

			   Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment except for freehold land are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

			   Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Buildings-in-progress 
are also not depreciated as these assets are not available for use. Depreciation of other property, 
plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to 
its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates: 

					    Club house 	 2% 

					    Golf course 	 2% 

					    Buildings 	 1 ²⁄3 % to 20% 

					    Plant and equipment, others 	 5% to 25% 

			   Assets of a value below RM500 are written off in the year of purchase. 
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

	 	 (d) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment, and Depreciation  (Contd.)

				   The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end 
to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous 
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied 
in the items of property, plant and equipment. 

			   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any and the net carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. 

	 	 (e) 	 Investment Properties 

			   Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital 
appreciation or for both. Such properties are measured at cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation.   

			   Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the 
investment properties is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment 
properties are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. 

	 	 (f) 	 Land Held for Property Development and Property Development Costs 

(i) 	 Land Held for Property Development 

	 Land held for property development consists of land where no development activities have 
been carried out or where development activities are not expected to be completed within 
the normal operating cycle. Such land is classified within non-current assets and is stated 
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.  

	 Land held for property development is reclassified as property development costs at the 
point when development activities have commenced and where it can be demonstrated 
that the development activities can be completed within the normal operating cycle. 

(ii) 	 Property Development Costs 

	 Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to development 
activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

	 When the financial outcome of a development activity can be reliably estimated, property 
development revenue and expenses are recognised in the income statement by using the 
stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that 
property development costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated 
total property development costs. 

	 Where the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated, 
property development revenue is recognised only to the extent of property development 
costs incurred that is probable will be recoverable, and property development costs on 
properties sold are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

	 Any expected loss on a development project, including costs to be incurred over the defects 
liability period, is recognised as an expense immediately. 
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.) 

	 	 (f) 	 Land Held for Property Development and Property Development Costs  (Contd.) 

(ii) 	 Property Development Costs (Contd.)

	 Property development costs not recognised as an expense are recognised as an asset, 
which is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  

	 The excess of revenue recognised in the income statement over billings to purchasers is 
classified as accrued billings within trade receivables and the excess of billings to purchasers 
over revenue recognised in the income statement is classified as progress billings within 
trade payables. 

	 	 (g)	 Impairment of Non-financial Assets 

			   The carrying amounts of assets, other than investment properties, property development costs, 
inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets held for sale, are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the amount of impairment 
loss. 

			   For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated at 
each balance sheet date or more frequently when indicators of impairment are identified.

			   For the purpose of impairment testing of these assets, recoverable amount is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to 
which the assets belong to. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is from the acquisition 
date, allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 
Group are assigned to these units or groups of units. 

			   An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups 
of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units 
on a pro-rata basis. 

			   An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the 
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for as a 
revaluation decrease to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount held in 
the asset revaluation reserve for the same asset. 

			   Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. An impairment loss for an 
asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 
The carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable 
amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised 
in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is 
treated as a revaluation increase.
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.) 

	 	 (h) 	 Inventories 

			   Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

			   Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and comprises all incidentals incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their existing condition and location. The cost of finished goods 
includes material, direct labour and production overhead costs. The cost of unsold properties 
comprises cost associated with the acquisition of land, direct costs and appropriate proportions 
of common costs. 

			   Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

	 	 (i) 	 Financial Instruments 

			   Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends and gains and losses relating to a financial 
instrument classified as a liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of 
financial instruments classified as equity are recognised directly in equity. Financial instruments 
are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

(i) 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

	 For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash and 
bank balances and deposits with licensed banks which have an insignificant risk of changes 

in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

(ii) 	 Marketable Securities 

	 Marketable securities are carried at the lower of cost and market value, determined on an 
aggregate basis. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis while market value is 
determined based on quoted market values. Increases or decreases in the carrying amount 
of marketable securities are recognised in profit or loss. On disposal of marketable securities, 
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in 
profit or loss.

(iii) 	 Receivables 

	 Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off when 
identified. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding 
amounts as at the balance sheet date. 

(iv) 	 Payables 

	 Payables are stated at the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods 
and services received. 

(v) 	 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 

	 All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration 
received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing 
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

(vi) 	 Equity Instruments 

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in 
equity in the period in which they are declared.
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.) 

	 	 (j) 	 Leases 

(i) 	 Classification 

	 A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land and buildings are classified as 
operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets and the land and 
buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the 
purposes of lease classification. All leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards are classified as operating leases.

(ii) 	 Finance Leases - the Group as Lessee 

	 Assets acquired by way of hire purchase or finance leases are stated at an amount equal 
to the lower of their fair values and the present value of the minimum lease payments 
at the inception of the leases, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The 
corresponding liability is included in the balance sheet as borrowings. In calculating the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor used is the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, when it is practicable to determine; otherwise, the Group’s incremental 
borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs are also added to the carrying amount of 
such assets. 

	 Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total 
leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are recognised in the profit 
or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period. 

	 The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for depreciable property, 
plant and equipment as described in Note 2.4(d). 

(iii)	 Operating Leases - the Group as Lessee 

	 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is 
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

	 In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or the up-front 
payments made are allocated, whenever necessary, between the land and the buildings 
elements in proportion to the relative fair values for leasehold interests in the land element 
and buildings element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front payment 
represents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

		  (k) 	 Borrowing Costs 

			   Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

			   All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. 
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.) 

	 	 (l) 	 Income Tax 

			   Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is 
the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is 
measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date. 

			   Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit. 

			   Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and 
included in the profit or loss for the period, except when it arises from a transaction which is 
recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, 
or when it arises from a business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred 
tax is included in the resulting goodwill or the amount of any excess of the acquirer’s interest is 
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the 
cost of the combination. 

	 	 (m) 	 Provisions 

			   Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect 
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. 

	 	 (n) 	 Employee Benefits 

(i) 	 Short Term Benefits 

	 Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense 
in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Short term 
accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when 
services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated 
absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are 
recognised when the absences occur. 

(ii) 	 Defined Contributions Plans 

	 Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays 
fixed contributions into separate entities or funds and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets 
to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding 
financial years. Such contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as 
incurred. As required by law, companies in Malaysia make such contributions to the 
Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”). 
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.) 

	 	 (n) 	 Employee Benefits (Contd.)

(iii) 	 Share-based Compensation

	 The Employee Share Options Scheme (“ESOS”), an equity-settled, share-based compensation 
plan, allows the Group’s employees to acquire ordinary shares of the Company.

	 The total fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee 
cost with a corresponding increase in the Share Option reserve within equity over the 
vesting period and taking into account the probability that the options will vest. The fair 
value of share options is measured at grant date, taking into account, if any, the market 
vesting conditions upon which the options were granted but excluding the impact of any 
non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions 
about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable on vesting date. 

	 At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that 
are expected to become exercisable on vesting date. It recognises the impact of the revision 
of original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss, and a corresponding adjustment to equity 
over the remaining vesting period. The equity amount is recognised in the Share Option 
reserve until the option is exercised, upon which it will be transferred to share premium, or 
until the option expires, upon which it will be transferred directly to retained earnings. 

	 The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to 
equity when the options are exercised.

		  (o) 	 Functional and Presentation Currency 

			   The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the 
Company’s functional currency.  

	 	 (p) 	 Revenue Recognition 

			   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

(i) 	 Sale of Properties 

	 Revenue from sale of properties is accounted for by the stage of completion method as 
described in Note 2.4(f)(ii).

(ii) 	 Sale of Goods and Services 

	 Revenue is recognised net of sales taxes and upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant 
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible 
return of goods. 

(iii) 	 Interest Income 

	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 
Where recoverability is uncertain, interest income will be recognised on a receipt basis. 

(iv) 	 Dividend Income 

	 Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(v) 	 Management Fees 

	 Management fees are recognised when services are rendered. 
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2. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.) 

	 2.4 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.) 

	 	 (q) 	 Non-current Assets Held for Sale 

			   Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is 
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate 
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary. 

			   Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets is 
brought up-to-date in accordance with applicable FRSs. Then, on initial classification as held for 
sale, non-current assets are measured in accordance with FRS 5 that is at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any differences are included in profit or loss. 

			   A component of the Group is classified as a discontinued operation when the criteria to be 
classified as held for sale have been met or it has been disposed and such a component represents 
a separate major line of business of operations. 

3. 	 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES 
	 GROUP	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Sales of land, houses and shoplots 	 71,470,656 	 84,862,086 	 -	 -

Sales of food, beverage and  
  room rentals 	 7,957,092 	 6,797,158 	 -	 -

Education 	 35,197,643 	 33,723,497 	 -	 -

Dividend income from subsidiaries 	 -	 -	 4,208,160 	 4,303,500 

Others 	 8,307,869 	 15,764,056 	 1,369,868 	 1,251,611 

	 122,933,260 	 141,146,797 	 5,578,028 	 5,555,111 

Sales of land, houses and shoplots represent land sold and a proportion of contract revenue determined by 
reference to the stage of completion of houses and shoplots sold, net of discounts. 

Cost of sales comprise: 
	 GROUP 

	 2007 	 2006	
	 RM 	 RM 

Sales of land, houses and shoplots 	 47,035,167 	 54,188,979 

Sales of food and beverage 	 827,629 	 676,425 

Others 	 6,079,926 	 11,514,174 

	 53,942,722	 66,379,578

 



66

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd. )
31 December 2007

4. 	 FINANCE COSTS 
	 GROUP	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

	 Interest expense: 

- Overdraft 	 96,896 	 57,144 	 -	 -

- Term loan 	 4,805,264 	 5,540,286 	 -	 -

- Revolving credit 	 1,726,923 	 1,683,401	  -	 -

- Hire purchase 	 56,093 	 29,450 	 2,715 	 3,174 

- Subsidiaries 	 -	 -	 5,061,457 	 5,759,603 

Interest on balance of consideration  
  on acquisition of a subsidiary 	 478,992 	 478,992 	 478,992 	 478,992 

Others 	 2,759 	 4,638 	 -	 -

	 7,166,927 	 7,793,911 	 5,543,164 	 6,241,769

5. 	 OPERATING PROFIT 

	 The following amounts have been included in arriving at operating profit: 

	 	 	 GROUP	 	 	COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Employee benefits expense (Note 6) 	 20,024,220 	 18,990,792 	 1,327,840 	 1,146,462 

Directors’ remuneration (Note 7) 	 3,376,849 	 3,082,691 	 734,227 	 759,401 

Auditors’ remuneration 	 118,000 	 113,000 	 30,000 	 25,000 

Depreciation of property, plant 
  and equipment 	 5,755,130 	 5,998,935 	 42,846 	 40,879

Amortisation of prepaid 
  land lease payments 	 189,022 	 284,347	  -	 -

Property, plant and equipment  
  written off 	 41,663 	 40,144 	 995 	 -

Allowance for doubtful debts 	 899,548 	 904,671 	 413,019 	 1,928,033 

Bad debts written off	  299,393 	 39,196 	 7,892 	 -

Bad debts recovered 	 -	 (12,000) 	 -	 -
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5. 	 OPERATING PROFIT  (Contd.) 

			   GROUP	 	 	COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

(Write back)/impairment of  
  investments and properties 	 (682,715) 	 (140,622) 	 -	 134,378 

Rental of premises 	 769,984 	 514,749 	 -	 -

Impairment of goodwill 	 -	 45,120 	 -	 -

Write down of inventories 	 606,984 	 670,784 	 -	 -

Royalty 	 -	 421,800 	 -	 -

Lease rental 	 91,645 	 107,751 	 -	 2,780 

Hire of plant and machinery 	 30,458 	 34,560	  -	 -

Interest income 	 (833,420)	  (849,445) 	 (16,596) 	 (8,174) 

Gain on disposal of property,  
  plant and equipment	  (71,091)	  (163,949) 	 -	 -

Management fee income 	 -	 -	 (1,369,868) 	 (1,251,611) 

Rental income 	 (243,157)	  (619,890) 	 -	 -

Write back of provision for  
  liquidated ascertained  
  damages (Note 29) 	 (2,525,260) 	 -	 -	 -

6. 	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 	

	 	 	 GROUP	 	 	COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Wages, salaries and allowances 	 17,817,329 	 16,839,376 	 1,056,654 	 1,005,530 

Statutory contributions to 
  Employee Provident Fund 
  and social security 	 2,079,841 	 2,151,416 	 144,136 	 140,932 

Share options granted under ESOS 	 127,050 	 -	 127,050 	 -

	 20,024,220 	 18,990,792 	 1,327,840 	 1,146,462 
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7. 	 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 	
	 	 	 GROUP	 	 	COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Executive directors

   Salaries and other emoluments 	 3,045,688 	 2,755,988 	 585,810 	 604,401

   Fees 	 69,000 	 66,925 	 25,000 	 25,000

   Benefits-in-kind 	 99,744 	 88,778 	 -	 -

	 3,214,432 	 2,911,691 	 610,810 	 629,401 

Non-executive directors	

   Fees 	 103,917 	 106,000 	 97,917 	 100,000

   Other emoluments 	 58,500 	 65,000 	 25,500 	 30,000 

	 162,417 	 171,000 	 123,417 	 130,000 

Total 	 3,376,849 	 3,082,691 	 734,227 	 759,401 

	 The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the 
following bands is analysed below:

	 GROUP 

	 	 	 2007 	 2006	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Executive directors 	

RM100,001 - RM500,000 			   1 	 2 

RM500,001 - RM1,000,000 			   4 	 3

Non-executive directors 

RM50,000 and below 			   3 	 3 

RM50,001 - RM100,000 			   1 	 1 

			   9	 9 
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8. 	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
	 	 	 GROUP	 	 	COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Continuing operations:  
Malaysian income tax 	 (144,537)	 767,015	 11,664	 -

Deferred taxation 	 1,525,732	 3,280,014	 -	 -

Under/(over) provision in prior years   

  - current    	 196,625	 301,655	 23,166	 45,833

  - deferred 	 (462,417)	 1,987,012	 -	 -

Total income tax expense  
  from continuing operations 	 1,115,403 	 6,335,696	 34,830	 45,833	
	

Discontinued operations:  
Malaysian income tax 	 -	 -	 -	 -

Total income tax expense 	 1,115,403 	 6,335,696 	 34,830 	 45,833 	
	

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 27% (2006: 28%) of the 
estimated assessable profit for the year. The domestic statutory tax rate will be reduced to 26% from the 
current year’s rate of 27%, effective year of assessment 2008 and to 25% effective year of assessment 
2009. The computation of deferred tax as at 31 December 2007 has reflected these changes.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit before taxation at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as 
follows:

			   GROUP	 	 	COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Profit/(loss) before taxation 
  - Continuing operations 	 (967,454) 	 6,957,509 	 (2,828,389) 	 (4,952,475)

  - Discontinued operations (Note 26) 	 3,649,504 	 311,763 	 -	 -

	 2,682,050 	 7,269,272 	 (2,828,389) 	 (4,952,475) 

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate 
  of 27% (2006: 28%) 	 724,154 	 2,035,396 	 (763,665) 	 (1,386,693) 

Effect of tax savings in small and  
  medium scale companies 	 (105) 	 (57,693) 	 -	 -

Effect of deferred tax at 
  different tax rates 	 (378,866) 	 (316,145) 	 -	 387 

Income not subject to tax 	 (2,788,404) 	 (2,878,977) 	 (931,718) 	 (972,672) 
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8. 	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd.)
	 	 GROUP	 	 	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 	 3,744,123 	 3,988,194 	 1,627,684 	 2,371,082 

Utilisation of previously		   
  unrecognised tax losses 	 (10,770) 	 (206,668) 	 -	 (133,964) 

Utilisation of previously unrecognised		   
  unabsorbed capital allowances 	 (92,520) 	 (35,546) 	 -	 -

Deferred tax assets not	   
  recognised during the year 	 183,583 	 1,518,468 	 79,363 	 121,860 

Under/(over) provision in prior years 
  - current taxation 	 196,625 	 301,655 	 23,166 	 45,833

  - deferred taxation 	 (462,417) 	 1,987,012 	 -	 -

Tax expense for the year 	 1,115,403 	 6,335,696 	 34,830 	 45,833

9. 	 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

	 (a) 	 Basic 

		  Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the 

financial year. 

	 2007 	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 

Loss from continuing operations attributable to 
  equity holders of the Company 	 (3,019,825) 	 (361,580) 

Profit from discontinued operations attributable to equity 
  holders of the Company 	 3,188,620 	 357,914 

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company 	 168,795 	 (3,666)

 

	 2007 	 2006 

Number of ordinary shares in issue 	 114,035,500 	 114,035,500
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9. 	 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd.)

	 (a) 	 Basic (Contd.)

	 2007 	 2006	
	 sen 	 sen 

Basic earnings per share for:

Loss from continuing operations	 (2.65) 	 (0.32)

Profit from discontinued operation 	 2.80 	 0.32

Profit for the year 	 0.15 	 -

	 (b) 	 Diluted 

		  For the current year, the outstanding ESOS have been excluded from the computation of fully diluted 
earnings per share as their conversion to ordinary shares would be antidilutive in nature. Accordingly, 
the basic and fully diluted earnings per share are the same. 

10. 	DIVIDENDS 
	 	 Net Dividends per	
	 Amount 	 Ordinary Share 

	 2007 	 2006 	 2007 	 2006	
	 RM 	 RM 	 Sen 	 Sen 

3% (2006: 3%) less 27% (2006: 28%)  
  taxation on 114,035,500  
  ordinary shares 	 2,497,377 	 2,463,167 	 2.19 	 2.16 

	

	 At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend of 3% net of 26% tax, amounting to 
RM2,531,588 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2007 will be proposed for shareholders’ 
approval. The financial statements for the financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, 
if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained 
earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd. )
31 December 2007

11.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd.) 	

	 Motor 	 Computer 	 Office 	
COMPANY 	 Vehicles 	 Equipment 	 Equipments	 Total 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Cost 		

At 1 January 2007 	 108,937 	 29,251 	 8,109 	 146,297 

Addition 	 -	 15,143 	 3,698 	 18,841 

Write off 	 -	 -	 (1,810) 	 (1,810) 

At 31 December 2007 	 108,937 	 44,394 	 9,997 	 163,328 

Accumulated Depreciation 		

At 1 January 2007 	 51,134 	 16,771 	 3,829 	 71,734 

Charge for the year 	 33,515 	 7,497 	 1,834 	 42,846 

Write off 	 -	 -	 (815) 	 (815) 

At 31 December 2007 	 84,649 	 24,268 	 4,848 	 113,765 

Net Carrying Amount 		

At 31 December 2007 	 24,288 	 20,126 	 5,149 	 49,563 

Costs 		

At 1 January 2006 	 108,937 	 28,601 	 8,109 	 145,647 

Addition 	 -	 650 	 -	 650 

At 31 December 2006 	 108,937 	 29,251 	 8,109 	 146,297 

Accumulated Depreciation 		

At 1 January 2006 	 17,619 	 11,029 	 2,207 	 30,855 

Charge for the year 	 33,515 	 5,742 	 1,622 	 40,879 

At 31 December 2006 	 51,134 	 16,771 	 3,829 	 71,734 

Net Carrying Amount 		

At 31 December 2006 	 57,803 	 12,480 	 4,280 	 74,563 

	 Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group is a freehold land of a subsidiary, with an aggregate 
net book value of RM46,305,595 (2006: RM46,305,595) which is charged to a financial institution for 
financial facilities extended to that subsidiary. This charge is pending discharge by the financial institution as 
the term loan of that subsidiary has been fully settled during the financial year. 

	 During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at aggregate costs of 
RM3,951,799 (2006: RM2,314,317) of which RM1,236,000 (2006: RM270,200) were acquired by means 
of hire purchase. Net book value of property, plant and equipment held under hire purchase in the Group 
and the Company is RM1,297,658 (2006: RM416,597) and RM24,288 (2006: RM57,803) respectively. 
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12. 	LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 

Freehold land, at cost 

At 1 January 	 118,372,487 	 125,309,259 

Reversal of sales in prior years 	 -	 152,217 

Transfer to property development costs 	 (2,047,283) 	 (7,088,989) 

At 31 December 	 116,325,204 	 118,372,487 

Certain land held for property development are being charged for borrowings taken by the subsidiaries. 

13. 	INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

	 Freehold 	  	
GROUP 	 Land 	 Building	 Total 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Cost 

At 1 January 2007 	 10,396,096 	 2,010,366 	 12,406,462

Reclassified as held for sale 	 (146,864) 	 (2,010,366) 	 (2,157,230)

At 31 December 2007 	 10,249,232 	 -	 10,249,232

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 1 January 2007 	 -	 345,902 	 345,902

Charge for the year 	 -	 10,051 	 10,051

Reclassified as held for sale 	 -	 (355,953) 	 (355,953)

At 31 December 2007 	 -	 -	 -

Net Carrying Amount 

At 31 December 2007 	 10,249,232 	 -	 10,249,232 

Cost 

At 1 January 2006/31 December 2006 	 10,396,096 	 2,010,366 	 12,406,462 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 1 January 2006 	 -	 305,696 	 305,696 

Charge for the year 	 -	 40,206 	 40,206 

At 31 December 2006 	 -	 345,902 	 345,902 

Net Carrying Amount 

At 31 December 2006 	 10,396,096 	 1,664,464 	 12,060,560 

	 The fair value of the above investment properties is approximately RM10,829,989 (2006: RM12,999,936) 
based on the current prices in an active market for the respective properties within each vicinity during the 
financial year. 
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14. 	PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 

Cost 

At 1 January 	 9,567,155 	 17,557,157 

Reclassified as held for sale 	 -	 (7,990,002) 

At 31 December 	 9,567,155 	 9,567,155 

Accumulated Amortisation 

At 1 January 	 4,002,534 	 4,690,404 

Amortisation for the year 	 189,022 	 351,603 

Reclassified as held for sale 	 -	 (1,039,473) 

At 31 December 	 4,191,556 	 4,002,534 

Net Carrying Amount 

At 31 December 	 5,375,599 	 5,564,621 

15. 	INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

	 Company 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 

Unquoted shares, at cost 	 277,733,481 	 278,008,481 

Accumulated impairment losses	  -	 (275,000)

	 277,733,481 	 277,733,481 

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: 	

Company 	 Principal 	 Country of	 Effective Equity

	 Activities 	 Incorporation 	 Interest

	 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 % 	 %  

BBN Development Sdn. Bhd. 	 Property development 	 Malaysia 	 75.38 	 75.38

PK Properties Sdn. Bhd. 	 Property development 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00

NS Township Development 	 Property development 	 Malaysia 	 70.00 	 70.00 
  Sdn. Bhd. 	

Arus Ikhlas Sdn. Bhd. 	 Property development 	 Malaysia 	 70.00 	 70.00 



79

P K  R e s o u r c e s  B e r h a d  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd. )
31 December 2007

15. 	INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd.)

Company 	 Principal 	 Country of	 Effective Equity

	 Activities 	 Incorporation 	 Interest

	 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 % 	 %  

PK Education Sdn. Bhd. 	 Provision of educational services 	 Malaysia 	 70.00 	 70.00

Advance Point (M) Sdn. Bhd. 	 Property development 	 Malaysia 	 70.00 	 70.00

PK Hotels & Leisure Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00

Nilai Springs Bhd. 	 Operation and management 	 Malaysia	 75.38 	 75.38 
	 of golf and country club 		   

Romila Jaya Sdn. Bhd. 	 Quarry  operations and 	 Malaysia	 91.05 	 91.05 
	 leasing of quarry 	  	

Nilai Landscape Sdn. Bhd. 	 Nursery and landscaping 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00

Advance Point Management 	 Provision of building 	 Malaysia 	 70.00 	 70.00 
  Sdn. Bhd. 	 management services 	

Healthcom Pharma Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 35.70 	 35.70

PK Innovations Sdn. Bhd.*	 Building management 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 70.00 
   	 and security system 			 

PK Mall Management Sdn. Bhd. 	 Management services	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00     

Healthcom Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 51.00 	 51.00 

PK Trade & Services Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00    

Nilai Hills Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00 

PK Academy Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 70.00 	 70.00 

Awan Cermat Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 91.05 	 91.05 

PK Healthcare Services Sdn. Bhd. 	  Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 100.00 	 100.00  

Emerald Spirit Sdn. Bhd.**	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 -	 70.00 

Peladang Chemicals (S) Pte. Ltd.*** 	 Liquidated 	 Singapore 	 -	 100.00

  

* 	 Information relating to the acquisition of additional issued and paid-up capital of the subsidiary is set 
out in Note 39(f). 

**	 Information relating to the disposal of the subsidiary is set out in Note 39(c). 

*** 	 Information relating to the winding up of the subsidiary is set out in Note 39(d).
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16.	 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM  

Unquoted shares, at cost 	 1,314,000 	 1,314,000 

Share of post-acquisition losses 	 (354,565) 	 (343,268) 

	 959,435 	 970,732 

Accumulated impairment losses 	 (135,486) 	 -

	 823,949 	 970,732 

Share of net assets 	 823,949 	 970,732 

The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and repayable on demand. 

Details of the associates are as follows: 	  

	 Principal 	 Country of 	 Effective 
	 Activities 	 Incorporation 	 Equity Interest 

	 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 % 	 % 

Golden Plateau Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia	 50.00 	 50.00 

Chartz Development Sdn. Bhd. 	 Dormant 	 Malaysia 	 30.00 	 30.00    

17. 	OTHER INVESTMENTS 

	 GROUP / Company

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM 

Quoted shares, at cost 	 2 	 4,945,823 

Quoted shares disposed 	 -	 (4,945,821) 

	 2	 2 

Less: Accumulated impairment losses 	 (1) 	 (1)

 	 1	 1 

Market value as at 31 December	  1 	 1 
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18. 	GOODWILL ARISING ON CONSOLIDATION 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM  

Cost 

At 1 January 	 842,506 	 1,787,586 

Effects of adopting FRS 3 	 -	 (899,960) 

Impairment loss for the year 	 -	 (45,120) 

At 31 December 	 842,506 	 842,506

 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses 

At 1 January 	 -	 899,960 

Effects of adopting FRS 3 	 -	 (899,960) 

At 31 December 	 -	 -

Net carrying amount 

At 31 December 	 842,506 	 842,506 

Goodwill represents excess of cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of each investment or cash generating unit. Goodwill 
has been allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) identified according to business segments 
as follows: 

	 Property	
	 Development 	 Others 	 Total 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

31 December 2007 	 738,506 	 104,000 	 842,506 

31 December 2006 	 738,506 	 104,000 	 842,506 

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit (“CGU”) fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use. As the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the value in use of 
the respective CGU, the fair value less costs to sell would best reflect its recoverable amounts. Fair value less 
costs to sell is arrived at based on reference to market values on an existing use basis of recent transactions 
of similar properties.
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19. 	PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM  

At 1 January 

Freehold land 	 136,765,680 	 133,199,552 

Development costs 	 452,912,416 	 437,667,604

	 589,678,096 	 570,867,156 

Cost incurred during the year:

Development costs 	 43,598,311 	 27,522,863

Cost recognised in income statement

At 1 January	  (328,086,189) 	 (275,899,892)

Recognised during the year 	 (49,050,543) 	 (52,186,297)

At 31 December 	 (377,136,732) 	 (328,086,189)

Transfers:

From land held for property development 	 2,047,283 	 7,088,989

To inventories 	 (777,898) 	 (15,209,782)

To non-current assets classified as held for sale 	 -	 (591,130)

	 1,269,385 	 (8,711,923) 

Property development costs at 31 December 	 257,409,060 	 261,591,907 

Certain pieces of land under property development costs are being charged for borrowings taken by the 
subsidiaries. 
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20. 	INVENTORIES 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM  

At cost: 

Trading inventories 	 506,448 	 715,608 

Unsold completed building units 	 29,345,820 	 33,483,760 

Commercial land 	 41,981,345 	 42,890,716 

Work in progress 	 -	 634,503 

Hotel supplies and consumables 	 -	 373,054 

Consumables 	 288,445 	 296,330 

	 72,122,058 	 78,393,971 

At net realisable value: 

Unsold completed building units 	 530,000 	 270,000 

	 72,652,058 	 78,663,971 

21. 	TRADE RECEIVABLES 

	 GROUP 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM   

Trade receivables	  68,763,762 	 90,534,999 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 	 (5,622,820) 	 (4,689,326) 

	 63,140,942 	 85,845,673 

During the financial year, the Group has written off RM16,160 (2006: Nil) against allowance for doubtful 
debts and trade receivables. 

Included in trade receivables of the Group are balances totalling RM31,618,472 (2006: RM31,604,778) from 
three entities, of which RM5,489,289 (2006: RM5,489,289) are amounts due from a company in which 
a director has financial interests. In determining the extent of allowance for doubtful debts, the Directors 
have given due consideration to the current economic conditions and other information available to assess 
the likelihood of bad debts arising. Although uncertainty generally exists with regard to the recovery of 
debts under the current economic conditions, the Directors are of the opinion that the allowance made for 
doubtful debts is adequate. It is not possible, however, to anticipate any possible future deterioration in 
credit conditions in respect of debtor parties. 

The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 21 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed on a case-
by-case basis. 
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22. 	OTHER RECEIVABLES 		
	 GROUP 	 COMPANY

	 2007 	 2006 	 2007 	 2006	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Deposits 	 2,006,647 	 2,352,378 	  111,696 	  110,000

Prepayments	  2,485,588 	  2,479,011 	  11,233 	  19,612 

Sundry receivables	  44,462,222*	  2,626,764 	  23,338,423* 	 -

	  48,954,457 	  7,458,153	 23,461,352 	 129,612 

*	Included in sundry receivables of the Group and of the Company are RM39,675,311 and RM23,338,423 
respectively due from a single debtor of which an amount of RM39,309,859 relates to the sale of hotel 
business as disclosed in Note 39(c) to the financial statements.

23. 	AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES 

	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM   

Current 		

Amounts due from subsidiaries 	 87,599,750 	 115,224,272 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 	 (2,341,051) 	 (1,928,032) 

Net amounts due from subsidiaries 	 85,258,699 	 113,296,240 

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. 

	 COMPANY 

	 2007	 2006 	
	 RM 	 RM   

Current 

Amounts due to subsidiaries

- interest bearing	 6,599,999	  14,364,053 

- non-interest bearing	 52,996,855 	 54,607,417 

	 59,596,854 	 68,971,470 

Non-current 

Amounts due to subsidiaries 

- interest bearing 	 69,009,296 	 58,499,553 

Total amount due to subsidiaries 	 128,606,150 	 127,471,023 
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23. 	AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (Contd.) 

The amounts due to subsidiaries arose primarily from payments on the Company’s behalf which are 
unsecured and repayable on demand. The amounts subjected to interest bore interest rates of 5.0% to 
9.0% (2006: 5.0% to 9.0%) per annum. Included in the current and the non-current interest bearing 
amount is an amount of RM13,426,188 which has a fixed term of repayment. The non-current amount of 
RM6,826,187 will be repayable by September 2009. 

24.	 DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS 

The interest rates and the average maturity of deposits with licensed banks as at the balance sheet date 
were as follows: 

		 GROUP 	 GROUP 	
	 Interest Rates 	 Average Maturity Days

		 	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006	
	 	 %	 % 	 	

Fixed deposits 	 2.30 - 3.55 	 2.40 - 3.30 	 18 	 23 

25.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group are : 

	 (a) 	 amounts totalling RM1,073,120 (2006: RM1,126,892) placed in trust for purchasers of residential 
houses and apartments in accordance with Housing Developers (Control and Licensing) Act 1966. 

	 (b) 	 amounts of RM199,750 (2006: RM78,125) in respect of share application monies received for shares 
in a subsidiary which are held in trust on behalf of the applicants and the related other payables are 
disclosed in Note 28. These application monies had been placed in trust as at 31 December 2007.
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26.	 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

	 GROUP 

	 Note	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 RM 	 RM   

Discontinued operations 

Profit for the year from hotelling business 	 (a) 	 3,649,504 	 311,763 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale 

Disposal of land and building 	 (b) 	 1,801,277 	 3,247,680 

Disposal of hotel properties 		  -	 54,176,748 

		  1,801,277 	 57,424,428 

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 	 -	 204,303 

	 (a) 	 Discontinued Operations and Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale 

		  On 9 November 2006, PK Hotels & Leisure Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, 
entered into a Sales & Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with Al-Hasry Travel & Tours Sdn. Bhd. to 
dispose the hotel building known as the Allson Klana Putra Nilai together with the furniture, fittings 
and equipment as listed in the agreement, collectively known as the “Property”, for a total cash 
consideration of RM12,613,290 . Subsequently, PK Hotels & Leisure Sdn. Bhd. had agreed to give 
a discount of RM1,561,329 to net off against the selling price. This sale was completed on 6 April 
2007. 

		  Advance Point (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“APM”) had on 1 January 2007 transferred its hotel business, namely 
Allson Klana Resort, Seremban, to Emerald Spirit Sdn. Bhd. (“EMS”). On 26 April 2007, APM and 
EMS, both subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a Subscription Agreement with Gen Glamour 
Sdn. Bhd. (“GGR”) whereby GGR has agreed to subscribe to 1,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 
each in EMS for RM1,000,000 in cash (“Proposed Divestment”). Following the Proposed Divestment, 
EMS became a 99.9% owned subsidiary of GGR. In return, the Company and APM shall receive 
RM39,309,859 in cash for the Proposed Divestment. This was completed on 1 June 2007. 

	 (b) 	 Disposal of Land and Building 

		  PK Hotels & Leisure Sdn. Bhd. and BBN Development Sdn. Bhd., subsidiaries of the Company, intended 
to dispose its land and building which has been classified under investment property in the previous 
year. The net carrying amount of the land and building of RM1,801,277 has been classified to non-
current assets held for sale during the financial year. The disposal is due to be completed in the next 
financial year and as at 31 December 2007, negotiations for the sale were in progress. 
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26.	 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
(Contd.)

An analysis of the results of discontinued operations is as follows: 

	 GROUP 

	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 RM 	 RM   

Revenue 		  7,369,818 	 21,059,995 

Cost of sales 		  (1,469,659) 	 (4,933,992) 

		  5,900,159 	 16,126,003 

Other income		  2,954,310 	 538,305 

Operating expenses		  (4,953,840) 	 (15,900,933) 

Finance costs		  (251,125) 	 (451,612) 

Profit before tax of discontinued operations		  3,649,504 	 311,763 

Taxation		  -	 -

Profit for the year from discontinued operations		  3,649,504 	 311,763 

The following amounts have been included in arriving at profit for the year from discontinued operations: 

	 GROUP 

	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 RM 	 RM   

Auditors’ remuneration 		  21,000 	 21,000 

Directors’ fees 		  19,000 	 21,075 

Depreciation  
  - Property, plant and equipment		  -	 3,026,171 

  - Investment properties 		  10,051 	 40,206 

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 		  -	 67,256 

Staff costs  
  - Wages and salaries		  2,011,144 	 4,132,647 

  - EPF and social security costs		  219,873 	 626,942 

  - Others 		  (3,214) 	 1,312,516 

Allowance for doubtful debts 		  50,106 	 28,237 

Rental expenses 		  -	 84,940 

Property, plant and equipment written off 		  -	 284,681 

Interest expense 		  251,125 	 451,612 

Rental income		   (56,550) 	 (146,400) 

Management fees income 		  (525,185) 	 (60,000) 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 		  (1,872,285) 	 (17,935) 
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26.	 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
(Contd.) 

The cash flows attributed to the discontinued operations are as follows: 

	 GROUP 

	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 RM 	 RM   

Operating cash flows 		  (8,206,714) 	 (373,274) 

Investing cash flows 		  12,051,961 	 (154,747) 

Financing cash flows 		  (169,303) 	 (75,262) 

Total cash flows 		  3,675,944 	 (603,283) 

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet as at 
31 December 2007 are as follows: 

	 Carrying  amount as at 

	 	 31.12.2007 	 31.12.2006 	
	 	 RM 	 RM 

Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 		  1,654,413 	 49,882,769 

Prepaid land lease payments 		  -	 6,950,529 

Property development costs 		  146,864 	 591,130 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale 		  1,801,277 	 57,424,428 

Liabilities 

Hire purchase payables, representing liabilities directly 
  associated with assets classified as held for sale 		  -	 204,303 

Included in the non-current assets held for sale of the Group are land and buildings of a subsidiary, with an 
aggregate net book value of RM39,681,037 in respect of the previous year, which are charged to financial 
institutions for financial facilities extended to that subsidiary. 

27. TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 
30 to 90 days (2006: 30 to 90 days). 
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28. 	OTHER PAYABLES 

	 GROUP 	 COMPANY

	 2007 	 2006 	 2007 	 2006	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Balance of consideration on   	  
  acquisition of a subsidiary  
  (Note 34) 	 4,789,907 	 4,789,907	 4,789,907 	 4,789,907

Sundry payables 	 26,601,342 	 34,276,155	 11,698,025 	 14,161,649

Deposits 	 6,521,170 	 4,885,886	 -	 -

Accruals 	 9,817,313 	 7,079,496	 421,043 	 453,379

Deferred income 	 1,056,010 	 842,004	 -	 -

Amounts held in trust 	 199,750 	 78,125 	 -	 -

	 48,985,492 	 51,951,573 	 16,908,975 	 19,404,935

Details of amounts held in trust are disclosed in Note 25(b). 

29. 	PROVISION 

	 GROUP 

	 	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

At 1 January 			   2,888,699 	 2,888,699 

Unused amount reversed 			   (2,525,260) 	 -

At 31 December 			   363,439 	 2,888,699 

The above represents provision for liquidated ascertained damages in respect of projects undertaken by 
a subsidiary. The provision is recognised for expected liquidated damages claims based on the terms of 
applicable sale and purchase agreements. 
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30. 	BANK BORROWINGS 

		  GROUP 	 COMPANY

	 2007 	 2006 	 2007 	 2006	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Unsecured:  
Bank overdrafts 	 839,275	 904,965 	 -	 -

Secured:  
Bank overdrafts 	 -	 6,264,641 	 -	 -

Current portion of long term  
  liabilities (Note 34)    
  - Commercial papers    	 30,712,490	 30,694,247	 -	 -

  - Hire purchase creditors    	 494,090	 221,838	 15,750	 29,506

  - Term loans 	 17,660,722	 9,106,889	 -	 -

	 49,706,577 	 47,192,580	 15,750	 29,506

Interest on the bank borrowings during the year ranged from 3.75% to 9.5% (2006: 2.85% to 9.7%) per 
annum. 

The security over the long term loan and commercial papers is disclosed in Note 34. 

31. 	SHARE CAPITAL 

	 GROUP / Company

	 	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Authorised:    
  250,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 			   250,000,000 	 250,000,000 

Issued and fully paid up:    
  114,035,500 ordinary shares of RM1 each 			   114,035,500 	 114,035,500 

ESOS is governed by the by-laws approved by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held 
30 July 2002. The ESOS is to be in force for a period of 10 years from the date it became effective,  
20 December 2002. 
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31. 	SHARE CAPITAL (Contd.) 

The salient features of the ESOS are as follows: 

(i)	 The Options Committee appointed by the Board of Directors to administer the ESOS, may from time 
to time grant options to eligible employees of the Group to subscribe for new ordinary shares of  
RM1 each in the Company. 

(ii)	 Subject to the discretion of the Options Committee, any employee whose employment is more than 
one (1) year and any executive directors holding office in a full-time executive capacity of the Group, 
shall be eligible to participate in the ESOS. 

(iii) 	 The total number of shares to be issued under the ESOS shall not exceed in aggregate 10% of 
the issued share capital of the Company at any point of time during the tenure of the ESOS and 
out of which not more than 50% of the shares shall be allocated, in aggregate, to directors and 
senior management. In addition, not more than 10% of the shares available under the ESOS shall 
be allocated to any individual director or employee who, either singly or collectively through his/her 
associates, holds 20% or more in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company. 

(iv) 	 The option price for each share shall be the weighted average of the market price as quoted in 
the daily official list issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the 5 market days immediately 
preceding the date on which the option is granted less, if the Options Committee shall so determine 
at their discretion from time to time, a discount of not more than 10% or the par value of the shares 
of the Company of RM1. 

(v)	 The options shall become exercisable only during the employees lifetime provided the employee has 
been in continuous service with the Group throughout the period. 

(vi)	 All new ordinary shares issued upon exercise of the options granted under the ESOS will rank pari 
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company other than as may be specified 
in a resolution approving the distribution of dividends prior to their exercise dates. 

(vii) 	 The persons to whom the options have been granted have no right to participate by virtue of the 
options, in any share issue of any other company. 

Information with respect to the number of options granted under the ESOS is as follows: 

	 Number of share options 

	 	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM  

At 1 January 			   4,259,000 	 6,263,000 

Granted 			   3,295,000 	 -

Lapsed 			   -	 (2,004,000) 

At 31 December 			   7,554,000 	 4,259,000 

The fair value of share options granted to employees is estimated using the Binomial Model. 
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32. 	RESERVES 

		  GROUP 	 COMPANY

	 2007 	 2006 	 2007 	 2006	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Distributable:    
  Retained earnings 	 176,881,218 	 178,876,924 	 12,456,053 	 17,816,649

Non-distributable:   	 113,537,671 	 113,537,671	 113,537,671 	 113,537,671 
  Share premium 

  Share option reserve    	 127,050 	 -	 127,050 	 -

  Capital reserve    	 17,008,595 	 16,889,912	 -	 -

  Capital redemption reserve    	 2,972,000 	 2,972,000	 2,972,000 	 2,972,000

  Exchange reserve 	 -	 332,876 	 -	 -

	 310,526,534 	 312,609,383 	 129,092,774 	 134,326,320

As at 31 December 2007, the Company has tax exempt profits available for distribution of approximately 
RM15,197,442 (2006: RM15,197,442), subject to the agreement of the Inland Revenue Board. 

	 Prior to the year of assessment 2008, Malaysian companies adopted the full imputation system. In accordance 
with the Finance Act 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, companies shall not be entitled to 
deduct tax on dividend paid, credited or distributed to its shareholders, and such dividends will be exempted 
from tax in the hands of the shareholders (“single tier system”). However, there is a transitional period of six 
years, expiring on 31 December 2013, to allow companies to pay franked dividends to their shareholders 
under limited circumstances. Companies also have an irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance and 
opt to pay dividends under the single tier system. The change in the tax legislation also provides for the 108 
balance to be locked-in as at 31 December 2007 in accordance with Section 39 of the Finance Act 2007. 

	 The Company did not elect for the irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance. Accordingly, during 
the transitional period, the Company may utilise the credit in the 108 balance as at 31 December 2007 to 
distribute cash dividend payments to ordinary shareholdings as defined under the Finance Act 2007. As at 
31 December 2007, the Company has sufficient credit in the 108 balance to pay franked dividends out of 
its entire retained earnings. 

	 Movements in reserves are shown in the respective statements of changes in equity. 

	 The nature and purpose of each category of reserve are as follows: 

(a) 	 Share Premium 

	 This amount arose from premium on the issue of ordinary shares above par value. 

(b) 	 Share Option Reserve 

	 This amount arose from the equity-settled share options granted to the employees. This reserve is 
made up of the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded on grant of share 
options. Further details of the share options are disclosed in Note 31. 
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32. 	RESERVES (Contd.)

(c) 	 Capital Reserve 

	 Capital reserve of the Group amounting to RM17,135,645 (2006: RM16,889,912) arose from premium 

on shares issued to non-participating minority interests in a subsidiary.

(d) 	 Capital redemption reserve 

	 This amount arose from the nominal value of shares repurchased and cancelled. The amount was 
transferred from retained earnings under Section 67A of the Companies Act, 1965. 

(e) 	 Foreign Exchange Reserve 

	 The foreign exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation 
of the financial statements of a foreign subsidiary. During the financial year, the foreign subsidiary 
has been wound-up and the related foreign exchange differences has been transferred to retained 
earnings. Further details are disclosed in Note 39(d) to the financial statements. 

33.	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES AND ASSETS 

	 GROUP 

	 	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

At 1 January 			   35,359,803 	 30,092,777 

Recognised in the income statement 			   1,063,315 	 5,267,026 

At 31 December 			   36,423,118 	 35,359,803 

	

	 Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows: 

	 GROUP 

	 	 	 2007	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Deferred tax assets: 			   (1,612,957) 	 (3,036,101) 

Deferred tax liabilities: 			   38,036,075 	 38,395,904 

			   36,423,118 	 35,359,803 
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33. 	DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES AND ASSETS (Contd.) 

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets of the Group during the financial 
year prior to offsetting are as follows: 

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group: 

	 Accelerated 	 Revaluation 	 Property 	
	 capital 	 of leasehold 	 development 	
	 allowance 	 land 	 expenditure 	 Total 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

At 1 January 2007 	 17,662,443 	 1,283,069 	 27,158,095 	 46,103,607 

Recognised in the income 
  statement 	 866,821 	 -	 (658,816) 	 208,005 

At 31 December 2007 	 18,529,264 	 1,283,069 	 26,499,279 	 46,311,612 

At 1 January 2006 	 20,209,377 	 1,374,952 	 27,970,580 	 49,554,909 

Recognised in the income 
  statement 	 (2,546,934) 	 (91,883) 	 (812,485) 	 (3,451,302) 

At 31 December 2006 	 17,662,443 	 1,283,069 	 27,158,095 	 46,103,607 

Deferred tax assets of the Group: 		

	 	 Tax losses and 	 	 	
	 	 unabsorbed 	 	 	
	 Provisions 	 allowances 	 Others 	 Total 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

At 1 January 2007 	 (1,715,989) 	 (8,926,064) 	 (101,751) 	 (10,743,804) 

Recognised in the income  
  statement 	 1,338,214 	 (445,839) 	 (37,065) 	 855,310 

At 31 December 2007 	 (377,775) 	 (9,371,903) 	 (138,816) 	 (9,888,494) 

At 1 January 2006 	 (1,910,889) 	 (17,248,518) 	 (302,725) 	 (19,462,132) 

Recognised in the income  
  statement 	 194,900 	 8,322,454 	 200,974 	 8,718,328 

At 31 December 2006 	 (1,715,989) 	 (8,926,064) 	 (101,751) 	 (10,743,804) 

Deferred tax assets not recognised are in respect of the following items:

	 GROUP 	 COMPANY 	

	 2007 	 2006	 2007 	 2006 	
	 RM	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Arising from: 		   
Unutilised tax losses 	 35,245,520 	 33,976,552 	 484,631 	 378,400 

Unabsorbed capital allowances 	 23,127,663 	 32,221,409 	 154,554 	 123,837 
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33. 	DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES AND ASSETS (Contd.) 

The unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances of the Group are available indefinitely for 
offsetting against future taxable profits of the respective entities within the Group, subject to no substantial 
change in shareholdings of those entities under the Income Tax Act, 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax 
authority. 

The unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances of the Company are available for offsetting 
against future taxable profits subject to no substantial change in shareholdings under the Income Tax Act, 
1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority. 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital 
allowances as it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against  which they can be utilised 
based on the current plan of the respective companies. 

34.	 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

	 GROUP 	 COMPANY 	

	 	 2007 	 2006	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 RM	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

Total borrowings 

Balance of consideration    
  on acquisition     
  of a subsidiary 	 (a) 	 4,789,907 	 4,789,907 	 4,789,907 	 4,789,907 

Term loans 	 (b) 	 17,660,722 	 26,767,611	  -	 -

Medium Term Notes 	 (c) 	 48,630,828 	 48,098,332 	 -	 -

Commercial Papers 	 (c) 	 30,712,490 	 30,694,247 	 -	 -

Hire purchase creditors 	 (d) 	 1,446,856 	 591,488 	 26,250 	 51,625 

		  103,240,803 	 110,941,585 	 4,816,157 	 4,841,532 

Less: Short term	
  borrowings 			 

Balance of consideration  
  on acquisition of a  
  subsidiary (Note 28) 		  (4,789,907) 	 (4,789,907) 	 (4,789,907) 	 (4,789,907) 

Commercial papers 		  (30,712,490) 	 (30,694,247) 	 -	 -

Hire purchase  creditors 		  (494,090) 	 (221,838) 	 (15,750) 	 (29,506) 

Term loans 		  (17,660,722) 	 (9,106,889) 	 -	 -

Long term borrowings 		  49,583,594 	 66,128,704 	 10,500 	 22,119 
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34. 	OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Contd.) 

(a)	 The balance of consideration on acquisition of a subsidiary represents the remaining 45% of the 
consideration for the acquisition of the 70% equity interest in Arus Ikhlas Sdn Bhd (“AISB”). The out-
standing balance was payable to the vendor of AISB on or before the expiry of the 36 month period 
from the date of completion of the acquisition, i.e. by December 2001. Until that date, the amount 
owing was non-interest bearing. However, interest at 10% per annum is chargeable on the balance 
outstanding after the 36 month period until full settlement of the balance. 

(b)	 Term loans 

	 Term loans comprise four loans which are secured by fixed and floating charges on certain freehold 
and long leasehold land and buildings of certain subsidiaries. Interest was charged during the year at 
6.8% to 9.5% (2006: 6.8% to 9.7%) per annum. 

	 The term loans are repayable as follows: 

	 GROUP 	

	 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Financial year ended/ending: 	 	

31 December 2007 			   -	 9,106,889 

31 December 2008 			   17,660,722 	 17,660,722

			   17,660,722 	 26,767,611 

(c)	 Medium Term Notes and Commercial Papers 

	 On 31 December 2004, BBN Development Sdn. Bhd. (“BBN”), a subsidiary of the Company issued 
RM31,000,000 of Commercial Papers (“CPs”) and RM50,000,000 of Medium Term Notes (“MTN”) 
under the Murabahah Notes Issuance Facility (“MUNIF”) to repay the outstanding bank borrowings of 
the Company and a fellow subsidiary. 

	 The MUNIF is available up to seven (7) years from the date of first issuance with the issuance of CPs 
with maturities ranging from one (1) to twelve (12) months and Medium Term Notes (“MTN”) with 
maturities ranging from one (1) to seven (7) years.  

	 The MUNIF Programme is subject to the Facility Limit Reduction Schedule set out as follows: 

From the date of first issuance	 Reduction Amount	 Revised Facility Limit	
	 (RM’million) 	 (RM’million) 

Fifth year 	 20 	 66 

Sixth year 	 34 	 32 

Seventh year 	 32	 - 
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34. 	OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES (Contd.) 

	 The limit for issuance of CPs is RM56 million or the Revised Facility Limit above, whichever is lower. 

	 The MUNIF is secured by a bank guarantee issued under the Kafalah Facility of up to RM89 million. 
The Kafalah Facility is secured against certain land being developed and held for future development 
of BBN as detailed in Note 12 and 19 respectively and corporate guarantee by the Company. 

	 During the year, the Company redeemed and renewed the RM31,000,000 Commercial Papers (“CPs”). 
The net proceeds received net of discount is as follows: 

	 	 Face Value 	 Discount 	 Net Proceeds 	
	 RM 	 RM 	 RM 

	 CPs 	 31,000,000 	 (287,510) 	 30,712,490 

	 CPs are subject to profits ranging from 3.92% to 4.88% (2006: 3.92% to 4.88%) per annum and 
repayable within the next twelve (12) months. 

	 The Medium Term Notes have profits rates and maturity dates as stated below. 

	 Aggregate Face Value 	 Profit Rate 	 Maturity Date 

	 RM20 million 	 5.0% 	 31 December 2009 

	 RM30 million 	 5.5% 	 31 December 2010 

(d) 	 Hire purchase creditors 
	 GROUP 	 COMPANY 	

	 2007 	 2006	 2007 	 2006 	
	 RM	 RM 	 RM 	 RM

Minimum lease payments 

Within one year 	 560,652 	 249,836 	 17,829 	 28,088 

Between one to five years 	 1,077,021	  422,464 	 11,882 2	 9,708 

	 1,637,673 	 672,300 	 29,711 	 57,796 

Less: Future finance  
  charges 	 (190,817) 	 (80,812) 	 (3,461) 	 (6,171) 

Present value of finance  
  lease liabilities 	 1,446,856 	 591,488 	 26,250 	 51,625 

Analysed as: 

Due within 12 months 	 494,090 	 221,838 	 15,750 	 29,506 

Due after 12 months 	 952,766 	 369,650 	 10,500 	 22,119 

	 1,446,856 	 591,488 	 26,250 	 51,625 

The flat interest rate for the hire purchase creditors is ranging from 3.75% to 5.64% (2006: 2.85% to 
4.5%) per annum. 
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35. 	SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

		 GROUP

		 Transaction value 	 Outstanding balance

		 2007 	 2006	 2007 	 2006 	
	 RM	 RM 	 RM 	 RM

	 Rental paid to a company in    
  which certain directors have   
  financial interests - G.O.   
  Construction Sdn. Bhd. 	 135,448 	 135,448 	 -	 -

		 COMPANY 

		 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Management fees charged to subsidiaries 	 1,369,868 	 1,251,611 

Dividend income from subsidiaries 	 4,208,160 	 4,303,500 

Interest charged by subsidiaries:

   - BBN Development Sdn Bhd 	 4,322,242 	 5,021,966

   - PK Education Sdn Bhd 	 739,215 	 737,637 

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 December 2007 
is disclosed in Note 16 and 23. 

The remuneration of directors of the Group and of the Company during the year is disclosed in Note 7. The 
remuneration of other members of key management during the year is as follows: 

	 GROUP 	 COMPANY 	

	 2007 	 2006	 2007 	 2006 	
	 RM	 RM 	 RM 	 RM

Salaries and other related costs 	 964,486 	 1,163,232 	 410,038 	 410,213

Benefits-in-kind 	 18,400 	 11,800 	 8,600 	 8,600

Directors’ fees 	 24,000 	 30,500 	 -	 -

	 1,006,886 	 1,205,532 	 418,638 	 418,813
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36. 	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (UNSECURED) 

		 COMPANY 

		 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Corporate guarantee for facilities granted to subsidiaries 	 110,000,000 	 110,000,000 

There is a pending claim of RM10.00 million against one of its subsidiaries, Nilai Springs Berhad (“NSB”) for 
an alleged breach of contract. NSB had denied the claim, and its application to the High Court to strike off 
the claim was allowed on 28 November 2001. The case has been fixed for trial on 1 and 2 July 2008 to be 
held at Seremban High Court. 

The directors of NSB in consultation with legal counsel are of the opinion that no provision is required. 

37. 	 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

		 GROUP 

		 	 	 2007 	 2006 	
	 	 	 RM 	 RM 

Approved and contracted for 	 2,227,451 	 -

Approved but not contracted for 	 41,672,983 	 161,538

	 43,900,434 	 161,538 

38. 	SEGMENT INFORMATION 

(a) 	 Reporting format 

	 The segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group’s risks and rates of 
return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and services produced. The operating 
businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services 
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and 
serves different markets. 

(b) 	 Business segments 

	 The Group is principally engaged in the following activities: 

	 (i) 	 Property development 

	 (ii) 	 Education 

	 (iii) 	 Hospitality 

	 Other operations of the Group mainly comprise investment holding, landscaping, operations and 
leasing of a quarry which do not constitute a separately reportable segment. 
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38.	 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd.)	 						    

	 (c)	 Geographical segments:	

		  Information on the Group’s operations by geographical segments is not presented as the Group 
predominantly operates in Malaysia.			 

							     

39.	 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR 					   

	 (a)	 On 28 August 2006, Nilai Landscape Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered 
into an agreement to dispose a building with carrying amount of RM2,656,550 for a cash consideration 
of RM2,150,000. In addition, an amount of RM506,550 would be compensated by one of its related 
companies, NS Township Development Sdn. Bhd. on completion of the disposal. The land where 
this building is situated is also disposed by BBN Development Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of 
RM4,478,798. These transactions were completed in May 2007.	

	 (b)	 On 9 November 2006, PK Hotels & Leisure Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, 
entered into a Sales & Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with Al-Hasry Travel & Tours Sdn. Bhd. to 
dispose the hotel building known as the Allson Klana Putra Nilai together with the furniture, fittings 
and equipment as listed in the agreement, collectively known as the “Property”, for a total cash 
consideration of RM12,613,290 . Subsequently, PK Hotels & Leisure Sdn. Bhd. had agreed to give 
a discount of RM1,561,329 to net off against the selling price. This sale was completed on 6 April 
2007. 	

	 (c)	 Advance Point (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“APM”) had on 1 January 2007 transferred its hotel business, namely 
Allson Klana Resort, Seremban, to Emerald Spirit Sdn. Bhd. (“EMS”). On 26 April 2007, APM and 
EMS, both subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a Subscription Agreement with Gen Glamour 
Sdn. Bhd. (“GGR”) whereby GGR has agreed to subscribe to 1,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 
each in EMS for RM1,000,000 in cash (“Proposed Divestment”). Following the Proposed Divestment, 
EMS became a 99.9% owned subsidiary of GGR. In return, the Company and APM shall receive 
RM39,309,859 in cash for the Proposed Divestment. This was completed on 1 June 2007.	

	 (d)	 On 16 March 2007, Peladang Chemicals (S) Pte Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had 
been wound-up. The final members’ meeting was held in Singapore on 16 March 2007.	

	 (e)	 On 7 September 2007, Nilai Springs Berhad, a subsidiary of the Company has obtained approval from 
the shareholders to construct a 180 rooms Hotel Resort at Nilai Springs Golf & Country Club (“Hotel 
Resort”) with banqueting, meeting and sports facilities.

	 (f)	 On 12 October 2007, PK Properties Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired 
the remaining 30% of the issued and paid-up capital in PK Innovations Sdn. Bhd. (“PKI”), comprising 
3 ordinary shares of RM1 each for a cash consideration of RM3. Following the acquisition, PKI became 
its wholly-owned subsidiary.
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40.	 COMPARATIVES 	 							     

	 The presentation and classification of items in the current year financial statements have been consistent 
with the previous financial year except that certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform 
with current year’s presentation:							     

		  As 	 Re-	 As 	
	 Previously Stated	 classification 	 Restated

	 	 	 RM	 RM	 RM

	 Group	 	 	

	 For the year ended 31 December 2006		

	 Other operating income	  3,820,377 	  (736,577)	  3,083,800 

	 Administration expenses	  (45,916,307)	  (9,792,069)	  (55,708,376)

	 Selling and distribution expenses	  (3,514,734)	  1,083,640 	  (2,431,094)

	 Operating expenses	  (14,314,502)	  9,445,006 	  (4,869,496)

41.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS								      

	 (a)	 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies	

		  The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are 
available for the development of the Group’s businesses whilst managing its interest rate risk, liquidity 
risk and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they 
are summarised below. It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s policy that 
no trading in derivative financial instruments shall be undertaken.

	 (b)	 Interest Rate Risk

		  Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value 
of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. As the Group has 
no significant interest-bearing financial assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest-bearing financial 
assets are mainly short term in nature and have been mostly placed in fixed deposits. 

		  The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings obtained 
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.  The Group manages its interest rate 
exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings.

		  The information on maturity days and effective interest rates of financial assets and liabilities are 
disclosed in their respective notes. 

	 (c)	 Liquidity Risk

		  The Group manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so 
as to ensure that refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall liquidity 
management, the Group maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible investments to meet 
its working capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilities 
at a reasonable level to its overall debt position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd. )
31 December 2007

41.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd.)	

	 (d)	 Credit Risk

	 	 The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group trades only with 
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to 
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are 
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.  

		  The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and 
non-current investments, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to 
the carrying amount of these financial assets.

		  The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty nor does 
it have any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial assets except for those disclosed 
in Note 21 and 22. 

	 (e)	 Fair Values	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 COMPANY

	  	 	 Carrying Amount 	  Fair Value 

	 	 	 RM 	  RM 

	 	 At 31 December 2007	

		  Amounts due from subsidiaries	  85,258,699 	 #

		  Amounts due to subsidiaries 	  52,996,855 	 #

	 	 At 31 December 2006		

		  Amounts due from subsidiaries	 113,296,240 	 #

		  Amounts due to subsidiaries 	 54,607,417 	 #

		

		  #  It is not practicable to estimate the fair values due principally to a lack of fixed repayment terms.

		  The fair values of investment properties are disclosed in Note 13. The fair value is determined based 
on the current prices in an active market for the respective properties within each vicinity during the 
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd. )
31 December 2007

42.	 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 On 18 March 2008, Akarmas Sdn. Bhd. (“Akarmas”) acquired 6,000,000 ordinary shares, representing 
approximately 5.26% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company via direct business 
transaction for a total cash consideration of approximately RM3,600,000 or RM0.60 per share (“Acquisition”). 
Arising from the Acquisition, Akarmas’ direct holding of the voting shares of the Company increased from 
5.58% to 10.84%.

	 Subsequent to the Acquisition, Akarmas is obliged to extend a mandatory take-over to acquire all the 
shares in the Company not already owned by Akarmas and its persons acting in concert with it (“PAC”) as 
Akarmas and its PACs  held more than 33% but less than 50% of the voting shares in the Company and 
the Acquisition involved Akarmas acquiring more than 2% of the shares in the Company.

	 The mandatory take-over was offered by Bank Islam Malaysia Berhad on behalf of Akarmas for a cash 
consideration of RM0.60 per share (“Offer”) for the following:

	 (i)	 all the remaining 61,606,566 ordinary shares of RM1 each in the Company, representing approximately 
54.02% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company not already owned by Akarmas 
and its PAC; and

	 (ii)	 all the new shares that may be alloted and issued up to the close of the Offer pursuant to the exercise 
of outstanding options granted to the employees of the Company under ESOS of the Company as 
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
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LIST OF PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

						      Approx.	 Net book 
	 	 	 	 Expiry	 Unit/	 age of	 value as at
	 	 Description/Location	 Tenure	 of Lease	 Acreage	 building	 31.12.07

						    
	1.	 Industrial Land Development	 Leasehold	 Year	 23	  -	 891,963
		  Mukim Labu and Setul		  2092	 acres		
		  District of Seremban.  
		  (For development and future sale)					   
						    
	2.	 Mixed development of	 Freehold	  -	 1,192.15	  -	 84,449,435
		  commercial and residential			   acres		
		  Mukim Labu and Setul					   
		  District of Seremban					   
	  	 (For development and future sale)					   
						    
	3.	 Condominiums 	 Leasehold	 Year	 17	 13	 2,170,112
		  PT 4591, Jalan Penghulu Cantik		  2092	 units		
		  70100 Seremban					   
		  Negeri Sembilan 
		  (For future sale)					   
						    
	4.	 Golf Course land and Clubhouse	 Freehold	  -	 252.87	 11	 45,035,069
		  PT 4770, Putra Nilai			   acres		
		  71800 Nilai					   
		  Negeri Sembilan					   
						    
	5.	 Quarry Land, Mukim Labu	 Leasehold	 Year	 30	  -	 1,841,977
		  10th Mile Seremban - KL Highway		  2054	 30		  2,400,667 
		  71907 Labu			   acres		
		  Negeri Sembilan					   
						    
	6.	 Bungalow Land & Building	 Leasehold	 Year	 1.1	 26	 1,573,443
		  H.S (D) 1695, PT 978, 		  2080	 acres		
		  Mukim Tras, 49000 Raub					   
		  Pahang					   
						    
	7.	 Building	  -	  -	 1	 10	 *1,654,412
		  PT 10844, Desa Cempaka			   unit		
		  Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai					   
		  Negeri Sembilan					   
						    
	8.	 Building	  -	  -	 1	 10	 *441,859
		  PT 6367, Jalan BBN 3/1			   unit		
		  Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai					   
		  Negeri Sembilan					   
						    
	9.	 Land & Building (College)	 Freehold	  -	 104.61	 10	 109,388,972
		  PT 13106, Putra Nilai			   acres		
		  71800 Nilai					   
		  Negeri Sembilan					   
						    
	10.	 Building	  -	  -	  -	 10	 *1,286,693
		  PT 7454, Jalan BBN 1/1A					   
		  Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai					   
		  Negeri Sembilan					   
								      

* The net book values of these properties do not include the value of the pieces of land where they occupy.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS  
As At 24 April 2008

Type of shares	 :	 Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each			 

Voting rights	 :	 One vote per shareholder on a show of hands				     
		  One vote per ordinary share on a poll			 

No. of shareholders	 :	 2,103			
								      

Distribution of Shareholdings	 						    

	 No. of	 Total	 % of	
Size of holdings	 holders	 holdings	 Shares

1 -  999 	  117 	  44,254 	  0.04 

1,000 - 10,000 	  1,714 	  4,974,590 	  4.36 

10,001 - 100,000 	  234 	  6,751,648 	  5.92 

100,001 - 5,701,774 	  33 	  27,570,037 	  24.18 

5,701,775 - above	  5 	  74,694,971 	  65.50 

Total	  2,103 	  114,035,500 	  100.00 

Substantial Shareholdings	 	 	 	 	

	 Names	 Direct Holdings	  Indirect Holdings

	 	 No. of Shares	 %	 No. of Shares	 % 

1.	 Akarmas Sdn Bhd	  33,367,600 	  29.26 	 -	 -   

2	 Ragan Jaya Sdn Bhd	  26,034,934 	  22.83 	  -   	  -   

3	 Pristine Acres Sdn Bhd	  8,259,000 	  7.24 	  -   	  -   

4	 FELDA	  7,292,437 	  6.39 	  -   	  -   

5	 Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Gan Kong Seng	  3,534,000 	  3.10 	  59,402,534 	  52.09 

6	 Dato’ Gan Kong Hiok	  2,240,000 	  1.96 	  8,259,000 	  7.24 

7	 Lim Mee Hwa	  475,000 	  0.42 	  5,575,000 	  4.89 

	 TOTAL	  81,202,971 	  71.21 		
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List of Top 30 Shareholders	 	

	 Name	 No. of Shares	 %

1	 Akarmas Sdn. Bhd.	  27,006,600 	  23.68 

2	 Ragan Jaya Sdn. Bhd.	 26,034,934 	  22.83 

3	 AMMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.	  8,000,000 	  7.02 
	 AmBank (M) Berhad for Pristine Acres Sdn. Bhd.		

4	 Lembaga Kemajuan Tanah Persekutuan (FELDA)	  7,292,437 	  6.39 

5	 Akarmas Sdn. Bhd.	  6,361,000 	  5.58 

6	 Gen Glamour Sdn. Bhd.	  4,572,000 	  4.01 

7	 DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.	  3,250,000 	  2.85 
	 Exempt An for British and Malayan Trustees Limited (Yeoman 3-Rights)

8	 Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Gan Kong Seng	  3,234,000 	  2.84 

9	 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.	  2,000,000 	  1.75  
	 Bny Brussels for Queensland Investment Corporation

10	 Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.	  1,900,000 	  1.67 
	 Pledged Securities Account for Dato’ Gan Kong Hiok		

11	 Low Mun Chong	  1,720,000 	  1.51 

12	 Chan Kam Seng	  1,455,000 	  1.28 

13	 Ten Ah Man	  1,333,000 	  1.17 

14	 Dato’ Lee Pit Chern	  1,278,000 	  1.12 

15	 Affin Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.	  1,000,000 	  0.88 
	 Pledged Securities Account for Low Mun Chong		

16	 Pertubuhan Peladang Kebangsaan	  619,437 	  0.54 

17	 Bukit Maju Developments Bhd.	  600,000 	  0.53 

18	 HDM Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.	  475,000 	  0.42  
	 DBS Vickers Secs (S) Pte. Ltd. for Lim Mee Hwa

19	 CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.	  441,400 	  0.39 
	 Exempt An for CIMB-GK Securities Pte. Ltd. (Retail Clients)

20	 Southern Investment Bank Berhad	  340,000 	  0.30 
	 Employees Provident Fund 

21	 Ng Kim Teng	  300,000 	  0.26 

22	 Ng Kim Ling	  300,000 	  0.26 

23	 Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.	  300,000 	  0.26 
	 Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Gan Kong Seng		

24	 Pristine Acres Sdn. Bhd.	  259,000 	  0.23 

25	 Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.	  220,500 	  0.19 
	 Pledged Securities Account for Lim Kiam Hooi	

26	 Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.	  218,000 	  0.19 
	 Pledged Securities Account for Tan Chin Eng		

27	 Chan Kam Seng	  200,000 	  0.18 

28	 DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.	  200,000 	  0.18 
	 Exempt An for British and Malayan Trustees Limited (Yeoman CL2)

29	 Loo Ah Luan	  196,000 	  0.17 

30	 Yong Kee Chong	  166,300 	  0.15 

		   101,272,608 	  88.81

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS  
As At 24 Apr i l  2008 (Contd.)
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DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS
(In accordance with the register maintained under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965)

Name of Directors	 Direct	 %	 Indirect	 %

Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Gan Kong Seng	 3,534,0001	 3.099	 59,402,5343	 52.091

Dato’ Gan Kong Hiok	 2,240,0002	 1.964	 8,259,0004	 7.242

Datuk Alladin Bin Mohd Hashim	 3,000	 0.002	 93,0005	 0.082

Gan Eng Hong	 -	 -	 -	 -

Chor Eng Choon	 -	 -	 -	 -

YM Prof. Emeritus Tengku Dato’ Shamsul Bahrin	  -	  -	  -	  -

Dato’ Prof. Zainuddin Bin Muhammad	 -	 -	 -	 -

Ooi Soon Kiam	  -	  -	  -	  -

Notes to interest in shares:

1.	 Partly held through Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

2.	 Shares held through AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. and Southern Investment Bank Berhad.

3.	 Indirect shareholdings includes the shares held through Ragan Jaya Sdn. Bhd and Akarmas Sdn. Bhd.

4.	 Indirect shareholdings includes the shares held through Pristine Acres Sdn. Bhd.

5.	 Deemed interested through his spouse’s, Datin Hamidah Bte Ibrahim, shareholdings in PK Resources Berhad.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Nilai 

Springs Golf & Country Club, Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus, on Thursday, 26 June 2008 

at 11.30 a.m. for the following purposes:-

AGENDA

Resolution 1	 To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 
and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Resolution 2	 To approve payment of a first and final dividend of 3% per RM1.00 ordinary share less 26% 
tax in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2007.

Resolution 3	 To re-elect Mr Chor Eng Choon who shall retire pursuant to Article 77 of the Company’s 
Articles of Association.

Resolution 4	 To re-elect Dato’ Prof Zainuddin Bin Muhammad who shall retire pursuant to Article 77 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association.

Resolution 5	 To re-elect Datuk Alladin Bin Mohd Hashim who shall retire pursuant to Article 77 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association.

Resolution 6	 To approve payment of Directors’ fee.

Resolution 7	 To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their 
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary/Special Resolutions: 

Ordinary Resolution

Resolution 8	 Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965  
(See note 2.1)

	 “THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and are 
hereby empowered to issue and allot shares in the Company, at any time and upon such 
terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion 
deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution 
does not exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company for the time being and that the 
Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation 
for the additional shares so issued on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and that authority 
shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.” 

Special Resolution

Resolution 9	 Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

	 “THAT the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company, as contained 
in Appendix II which is attached to the Circular to Shareholders dated 4 June 2008 be and are 
hereby approved.

	 AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to assent to any modifications, variations 
and/or amendments as may be required by the relevant authorities and to do all acts and 
things and take steps as may be considered necessary to give full effect to the proposed 
amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company.”

	 To transact any other ordinary business for which due notice has been given.

NOTICE OF 34th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT the First and Final Dividend of 3% per RM1.00 ordinary share less 

26% tax for the financial year ended 31 December 2007, if approved by the shareholders at the Annual General 

Meeting, will be payable on 31 July 2008 to Depositors registered in the Records of Depositors at the close of 

business on 12 July 2008.

A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of :-

(a)	 Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 12 July 2008 in respect of 
transfers; and

(b)	 Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Paul Yong Pow Choy (MIA 9105)

Company Secretary

Nilai
Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus
4 June 2008

Notes :-

1.	 Appointment of Proxy

	 (a)	 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to vote in his 
stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149 (1) of the Companies 
Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

	 (b)	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly 
authorised in writing or if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or 
attorney duly authorised.

	 (c)	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office at Wisma BBN, PT 7454, Jalan BBN 
1/1A, Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus not less than 48 hours before the time appointed 
for holding the meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

2.	 Explanatory Note on Special Business :

	 2.1	 Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

		  The proposed Resolution 8, if passed, will give the Directors authority to allot and issue new ordinary shares up 
to an amount not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for such purposes as the Directors 
consider would be in the interest of the Company. This authority will commence from the date of this Annual 
General Meeting and unless revoked or varied by the Company at a General Meeting, will expire at the next 
Annual General Meeting.

	 2.2	 Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

		  The proposed Resolution 9, if passed, will bring the Articles of Association of the Company in line with the 
amendments to the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Notice Of Book Closure  
For Payment Of Dividend
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1.	 Names of Directors who are standing for re-election

	 a)	 Mr Chor Eng Choon

	 b)	 Dato’ Prof Zainuddin Bin Muhammad

	 c)	 Datuk Alladin Bin Mohd Hashim 

2.	 Details of Directors seeking for re-election

	 Details of Directors seeking for re-election at the 34th Annual General Meeting are set out in the 
Directors’ Profile on pages 6 to 7 of the Annual Report.

Statement Accompanying Notice Of  
34th Annual General Meeting
(pursuant to paragraph 8.28(2) of the Listing Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)



I/We ______________________________________________________ of ________________________________________________

being a member/members of PK RESOURCES BERHAD, hereby appoint   ____________________________________________ of 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

to be my/our  proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
of the Company to be held at Nilai Springs Golf & Country Club, Putra Nilai, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus, on 
Thursday, 26 June 2008 at 11.30 a.m.

My/Our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below :- 

Resolutions For Against

Resolution No. 1

Resolution No. 2

Resolution No. 3

Resolution No. 4

Resolution No. 5

Resolution No. 6

Resolution No. 7

Resolution No. 8 

Resolution No. 9

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces where you wish your votes to be cast. In the absence of specific directions, 
your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

_____________________
Date	

_____________________	 _______________________
Signature	 No. of Shares Held

PROXY FORM

Notes :-

1.	 Appointment Of Proxy

	 (a)	 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to vote in his stead. A proxy 
need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149 (1) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to 
the Company.

	 (b)	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing 
or if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

	 (c)	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office at Wisma BBN, PT 7454, Jalan BBN 1/1A, Putra 
Nilai, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting and 
at any adjournment thereof.

2.	 Explanatory Note On Special Business :

	 2.1	 Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

		  The proposed Resolution 8, if passed, will give the Directors authority to allot and issue new ordinary shares up to an amount 
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the 
interest of the Company. This authority will commence from the date of this Annual General Meeting and unless revoked or 
varied by the Company at a General Meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting.

	 2.2	 Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

		  The proposed Resolution 9, if passed, will bring the Articles of Association of the Company in line with the amendments to the 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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